
Meeting of:  Heywood Township Committee
Date: Monday, 10th June, 2019
Time: 6.15 pm.
Venue: Phoenix Centre - L/Cpl Stephen Shaw MC Way,  

Heywood, OL10 1LR

This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012.

Item 
No.

AGENDA Page No

1.  CIVIC PRAYERS 

2.  APOLOGIES 

To receive any apologies for absence.

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal or 
personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of those 
interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 of the Local 
Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.   

4.  URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

To determine whether there are any additional items of business which, by 
reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should be considered at 
the meeting as a matter of urgency.

5.  ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 

To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to be 
excluded from the meeting.

6.  OPEN FORUM 

Half an hour has been set aside for members of the public to raise any issues 
relevant to the business of the Committee and the Township.

7.  MINUTES 3 - 6

To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Heywood Township Committee 
held on 11th March 2019.

Public Document Pack



8.  HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REVIEW 7 - 42

To consider the Township funding arrangements for 2019/20.

9.  HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP DELEGATION ARRANGEMENTS AND 
APPOINTMENTS 2019/20 

43 - 46

To consider the governance arrangements and appointments of the 
Township Committee for 2019/20.

10.  PROVISION OF PEDESTRIAN CROSSING ON BURY OLD ROAD 

For the Township to be updated on the pedestrian crossing on Burry old 
road.

11.  TOILET PROVISION IN HEYWOOD TOWN CENTRE 

Members will receive an update on the provision of toilets in Heywood Town 
Centre.

Heywood Township Committee Members
Councillor Jacqueline Beswick Councillor Ray Dutton
Councillor Susan Emmott Councillor Peter Malcolm
Councillor Alan McCarthy Councillor Liam O'Rourke
Councillor Linda Robinson Councillor Peter Rush
Councillor Carol Wardle

For more information about this meeting, please contact 
John Addison

01706 924816



HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF MEETING
Monday 11th March 2019

PRESENT:  Councillor Peter Rush (Chair); Councillors Beswick, Dutton, 
Malcolm, McCarthy, O'Rourke, Robinson and Wardle

OFFICERS: Chris Woods and Ian Trickett (Neighbourhoods Directorate) Fay 
Davies (Children’s Services Directorate) Stuart Hay and John Addison 
(Resources Directorate)  

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 45 Members of the Public. 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Councillor Susan Emmott

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
87 There were no declarations of interest.

URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS
88 There were no urgent items of business. 

OPEN FORUM
89 The following matters were raised as part of the Open Forum:- 

a) Spatial Framework

A Member of the public raised a concern about new housing on 
Bamford Road and the lack of information being provided. The 
Committee informed residents that since the appointment of the 
Greater Manchester Mayor there had been changes to the spatial 
framework that had land added to it and removed for development. It 
was reported that the Council had to build a significant number of new 
build houses set by the Government and that the Council had less 
powers on where the developments could take place.

Member encouraged residents to log on to the GMFS website and add 
their comments to the spatial framework and the land up for 
development consideration. 

b) Heywood Post Office

Residents raised concerns that Heywood Post Office was to close and 
move into part of another shop without consultation. Concerns were 
raised that without a dedicated Post Office Heywood would suffer and 
that the service offered via another shop offered no assurances that the 
service would be available long term.

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 7



Members shared residents’ concerns and unanimously opposed the 
closer and was looking to do all it can to keep the Post Office in 
Heywood. 

MINUTES
90 RESOLVED

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Township Committee held on 14th 
January 2019 be agreed as a correct record.

ITEMS FOR EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS
91 There were no items of business under this item.

METRO MONEYWISE CREDIT UNION - PRESENTATION
92 Members received a presentation on Metro Moneywise and its 
association with Rochdale Borough Council, outlining its benefits and key 
services.

RESOLVED

That the presentation be noted.

HEYWOOD NEW ALLOTMENTS PROVISION
93 The Director of Neighbourhoods presented a report of proposed sites in 
Heywood for allotment provision. Members were informed that Rochdale 
Borough had 524 allotment plots across the Borough but this was not enough 
to meet demand and was less than half the amount the Government 
recommends. It was noted that demand for allotments had boomed nation-
wide with a massive increase in requests for leisure allotments from people 
who are still in fulltime employment and young families. It was reported that as 
of 25th February 2019 there were 985 people on the waiting list for an 
allotment in the Borough, more than quadruple what it was four years ago.

Members were informed that Environmental Management Service had been 
tasked with creating 100 new plots a year, every year, for the next 5 years. 
This had been approved by Cabinet with provisionally allocated Capital 
funding to enable delivery. It was noted that Heywood’s allocation of 
allotments would be between 80 and 90 in total over the 5 years.

Members were informed that the next steps of the planning stage of the 
project was to identify viable sites for individual Township Approval. 
Environmental Management Service had been working with Planning & 
Estates to create a list of potential sites for Township consideration. A number 
of sites were provided to Members for consideration.

In response to Members questions it was noted that the sites identified were 
just officer suggestions to aid Members, but sites could be ruled in or out 
during the consultation which the Township was being asked to approved 
starting. A number of Residents had attended the meeting to raise concerns 
about the proposed sites.

Page 4



It was confirmed that no decision had been taken and that Officers and 
township Members would be undertaking consultation and site visits before 
any recommendations would be put to the Heywood Township.

A petition from local residents opposing the use of Harwood Park School 
playing field for allotments was handed in to the Committee and it was agreed 
that a site visit be undertaken, involving Members and residents.

RESOLVED

That Members approve the start of consultation on potential sites in Heywood 
to new allotments with Members undertaking site visits to suggested sites as 
contained with the report.

HEYWOOD GRASS VERGE MANAGEMENT
94 Members received a report on grass verge management in Heywood 
from the Director of Neighbourhoods. It was reported that the Environmental 
Management Service had been tasked with delivering new methods of grass 
verge maintenance to deliver improved appearance, improved wildlife value 
and reduced pollution from fuel use by strimmer’s and mowers whilst also 
reducing maintenance costs. This was to be achieved with a roll out 
programme to the majority of sites over a number of years.

The report identified a number of sites in Heywood and alternative methods of 
maintenance for Members to consider. It was noted that when rollout was 
imminent Environmental Management Services would carry out extensive 
public information using a range of media to ensure the public know what is 
happening and the benefits that would be achieved.

RESOLVED

That Members approve the shortlisted sites provided and that the trial of 
alternative maintenance be informal flowering not chemical treatment.

HEYWOOD CAR PARKS - INTRODUCTION OF TIME LIMIT
95 The Township received a report from the Director of Neighbourhoods 
on the Committee’s intention to introduce a 3-hour time limit on three 
Heywood Town Centre Car Parks that had been advertised and 18 objections 
received.

Members were reminded that Heywood Township Committee had 
commissioned the introduction of some time limit restrictions on three of the 
car parks situated in Heywood town centre. This was intended to promote a 
turnover of spaces and remove long duration or all-day parking from the car 
parks in question and encourage visits to town centre shops and amenities in 
Heywood. 

It was noted that the three car parks were at the Civic Centre, Hill Street and 
Taylor Street. It was noted that the intention was to impose a time limit of 3 

Page 5



hours and no return within one hour during the period of 8am to 6pm Monday 
to Friday and the car parks would remain free to use.

Members received representation from the objectors who were mostly 
business owners and employees directly effect by the order. Concerns were 
raised about the impact of parking to get to work, cost of permits if they were 
introduced and the impact of their customers who required longer than 3 
hours.

Members considered the concerns raised and noted that in total there were 17 
free to use car parks in Heywood.  Members stressed that the proposed limit 
was a response to complaints the township had received over a number of 
years of the car parks being used by commuters out of Heywood, effecting 
parking for visitors to local shops.

RESOLVED

That the Committee approve the proposed Traffic Order, Borough of Rochdale 
((Civil Enforcement of Traffic Contraventions) (Off-Street Parking Places) 
(Tariff and Operational Hours) Order 2017) (Amendment) (No.2) Order be 
implemented as advertised. 
THE NEED FOR EXTRA PRIMARY SCHOOL PLACES 2019 - 2023
96 The Director of Children's Services provided the township with a report 
that reminded Members of the need to keep under review the need for extra 
class places in each Township. The report set out proposals to address the 
need for extra Reception places. 

RESOLVED

That the Township note the proposals to increase capacity at Schools within 
the Township based on expected future requirements.

THE NEED FOR EXTRA YEAR 7 SCHOOL PLACES 2019-2028
97 The Director of Children's Services provided the township with a report 
that identified Strategies for managing the predicted shortfall in year 7 places 
for the intake year of 2019 and 2020. It was reported that the school’s team 
was working to aid the DfE and any successful academy to open a new 
school in the borough for September 2021 for future places that were needed.

Members were informed that the government had made an announcement 
that they would fund all special school applications that “meet the criteria”. It 
was reported that Rochdale Council had submitted an expression of interest 
to have a new secondary special school specializing in Autism and 
Communications special needs.

RESOLVED

That Township note the announcement about special schools made by the 
government and that a site will need to be identified for the school. 

Page 6



Agenda Item

Report to Heywood Township Committee

Date of Meeting 10 June 2019
Portfolio Neighbourhoods, 

Community & Culture
Report Author Sharron Worrall
Public/Private Document Public Document

Heywood Township Funds Review

1. Executive Summary

1.1 This report reviews the revenue and capital expenditure during 2018/19 and 
provides options for the allocation of funds in 2019/20.

1.2 Members are asked to approve Heywood Township Funds terms and 
conditions, and agree delegation arrangements concerning funding decisions.

2. Recommendation

2.1 Members note the expenditure, commitments and balances for Heywood 
Township revenue and capital funds at financial year end 2018/19 (Appendix 1 
and 2).

2.2 Members note the findings of the review of Township Funds 2018/19 
(Appendix 3) and evaluations received to date for some of the projects funded 
(Appendix 4).

2.3 Members approve the allocation of Heywood Township Funds to funding 
streams in 2019/20 as detailed in Appendix 5.

2.4 Members approve the terms and conditions for Heywood Township revenue 
and capital funds for 2019/20 (Appendix 6).

2.5 Members agree to the delegation arrangements for Heywood Township Funds 
2018/19 as detailed at 4.6 of this report.

3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1 Management of the Heywood Township Fund is delegated to the Heywood 
Township Delegated Sub Committee.

3.2 Heywood Township Funds are allocated to projects that benefit the 
Township’s community and environment, and realise the Township priorities.

Page 7

Agenda Item 8



3.3 To enable committee to monitor and review the use of the Heywood Township 
Funds to ensure continued efficient and effective use of the funds.

4. Key Points for Consideration

4.1 Members note expenditure, commitments and balances for Heywood 
Township revenue and capital funds 2018/19 (Appendix 1 and 2).  The final 
outturn for financial year 2018/19 as agreed with Accountancy will be reported 
to the next scheduled funding committee.

4.2 A review of Heywood Township revenue and capital funds has been 
undertaken (Appendix 3).  Findings have influenced funding streams 
suggestions, the terms and conditions of the funds and the administration 
procedures for grant applications for 2019/20.

4.3 Evaluation of projects provides useful information to the Township relating to 
identifying the effectiveness of the application process and management of 
grants; whether projects deliver value for money; applicants achieve their 
objectives and evidence their successes, and ensure that the completed 
projects funded complied with the terms and conditions of the Heywood 
Township Fund.  Grants awarded and projects funded have made a difference 
to the local community with improvements to local facilities, increased social 
interaction and delivery of solutions to address local needs.  All successful 
applicants are informed that it is a condition of the grant that they complete a 
project evaluation form.  Members are asked to note the summaries of 
evaluation information received on projects which have been funded as 
detailed in Appendix 4.

4.4 Township Officers have analysed the findings from the review of Township 
Funds 2018/19 and recommend that Members approve the allocation of 
Township Funds to funding streams in 2019/20 as detailed in Appendix 5.

4.5 Terms and conditions for Heywood Township revenue and capital funds have 
been updated.  Members are asked to approve the terms and conditions for 
2019/20 (Appendix 6).

4.6 Members are asked to agree the delegation arrangements for Heywood 
Township Funds 2019/20 as follows:

a) Townships & Communities Manager, in consultation with the Chair and 
Vice Chair of Heywood Township Committee, may make decisions on the 
allocation of funds to all projects for £5,000 and under.

b) Heywood Township Officers will refer projects over £5,000 to the next 
Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee for decision.

c) Township Officers will refer projects to be funded from Ward Funds to 
Ward Councillors to seek their support.  Decisions on Ward Funds are 
delegated to the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with 
the Ward Councillors with the decision based on majority agreement.  Any 
disputes concerning allocation of Ward Funds will be referred to the next 
Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee for decision.

d) Delegated decisions will be reported for information to each Heywood 

Page 8



Township Delegated Sub Committee to ensure all Members are aware of 
projects that have been approved.

4.7 Alternatives Considered

In considering the report, Members will decide whether or not to approve the 
allocation of funds to funding streams and adopt the terms and conditions.

5. Costs and Budget Summary

5.1 Heywood Township revenue and capital budget summaries that detail 
expenditure, commitments and balances for financial year 2018/19 in 
Appendix 1 and 2.  Recommendations for allocation of Heywood Township 
Funds to funding streams for financial year 2019/20 in Appendix 5.

5.2 Committee will receive regular reports to enable Members to monitor the use 
of the Heywood Township Funds to ensure best use of available resources.

5.3 Township funds are monitored on a monthly basis and financial monitoring 
reports will be presented to future committees.

6. Risk and Policy Implications

6.1 No specific risk issues for Members to consider arising from this report.

6.2 The Townships Plan forms part of the Council’s policy framework.  The plan 
for 2017-19 will be regularly updated to reflect how funds are allocated across 
the Townships in line with the identified priorities.

6.3 The purpose of the Township Funds is to enable Township Committees to 
meet their respective Township priorities and to deliver actions to meet those 
priorities.

7. Consultation

7.1 None

Background Papers Place of Inspection

None N/A

For Further Information Contact: Sharron Worrall
sharron.worrall@rochdale.gov.uk
01706 924802

Page 9



APPENDIX 1

OVERALL SUMMARY - REVENUE 2018/19           £  % Actual 
Spend 

 % Actual + 
Committed 

Budget b/f 2017/18 17,583         64.61% 88.17%
Base Budget 2018/19 58,000         
Income/Adjustments 2018/19 -                   
Budget Available 2018/19 75,583         
Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 48,836         
Commitments 17,809         
Total Actual + Commitments 66,644         
Budget Remaining 2018/19 8,939           

Forecast Outturn 75,583         
Potential under/(over)spend 2018/19 -                   

Fund
 Balance b/f 

2017/18
£ 

 Base 
Budget 
2018/19

£ 

 Income/
Adjustments

2018/19 

 Revised 
Budget 
2018/19 

 Actuals to 
Period
         £ 

 Committed 
to Period

     £ 

 Virements 
within 

Township 
Funds 

£ 

 Virements to 
Services 

£ 

 Total to 
Period 

£ 

 Budget 
remaining 

2018/19 
£ 

Projects Fund 4,554           42,000         -                       46,554         27,004          9,150             -                     9,295             45,449    1,105          
Events Fund -                   8,000           -                       8,000           7,521            -                     -                     -                     7,521      480              
North Ward Fund 4,874           3,000           -                       7,874           2,085            3,452             -                     -                     5,537      2,337          
West Ward Fund 1,725           3,000           -                       4,725           1,984            700                -                     -                     2,684      2,041          
Hopwood Hall Ward 6,430           2,000           -                       8,430           947               4,506             -                     -                     5,453      2,977          
Total 17,583         58,000         -                       75,583         39,541          17,809           -                     9,295             66,644    8,939          

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

P
age 10



APPENDIX 2

OVERALL SUMMARY - CAPITAL 2018/19           £  % Actual 
Spend 

 % Actual + 
Committed 

Budget b/f (2017/18) 44,490         72.98% 98.19%
Base Budget 2018/19 53,600         
Income/Adjustments 2018/19 (18,760)        
Budget Available 2018/19 79,330         
Budgets transferred to services/Actuals 57,893         
Commitments 20,000         
Total Actual + Commitments 77,893         
Budget Remaining 2018/19 1,437           

Forecast Outturn 79,330         
Potential under/(over)spend 2018/19 -                   

Project
 Balance b/f 

2017/18
£ 

 Base 
Budget 
2018/19

£ 

 Income/
Adjustments

2018/19
£ 

 Revised 
Budget 
2018/19

£ 

 Actuals/
Virement to 

Period
         £ 

 Committed 
to Period 

£ 

 Total to 
Period

      £ 

 Budget 
Remaining

2018/19
£ 

HTC/07/16 Starkey Street Junction Improvements 15,000         -                   -                       15,000         -                   15,000           15,000          -                  
HTC/01/17 Heywood Town Centre Car Parks 
TRO 9,500           -                       9,500           9,500            -                     9,500            -                  

HTC/06/17 Berwick Close Grass Verges 
Replacement 25,500         -                   -                       25,500         25,500          -                     25,500          -                  

HTC/01/18 Bury Old Road/Moss Hall Road 
Junction Protection 3,500           -                       3,500           3,500            -                     3,500            

HTC/04/18 Heywood Civic Centre Concourse 
Lighting 7,143           -                       7,143           7,143            -                     7,143            (0)                

HTC/05/18 Rochdale Road East/Harefield Drive 
Junction Waiting Restrictions 5,000           -                       5,000           5,000            -                     5,000            -                  

HTC/06/18 Rochdale Lane/Brierley Street Waiting 
Restrictions 4,000           -                       4,000           4,000            -                     4,000            -                  

HTC/07/18 Sandon House Community Centre 
Insulation Upgrade 3,250           -                       3,250           3,250            -                     3,250            -                  

HTC/08/18 Roch Valley Raiders BMX Track 
(Linked to HW/09/18) 5,000           -                       5,000           -                   5,000             5,000            -                  

-                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    
Budget reduction -                   18,760             -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  

-                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  
-                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    
-                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  
-                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  
-                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  
Unallocated Funds 2018/19 3,990           16,207         -                       1,437           -                   -                     1,437            1,437          

-                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  
-                   -                   -                       -                   -                   -                     -                    -                  

Total 44,490         53,600         18,760             79,330         57,893          20,000           79,330          1,437          

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDS REPORT 2018/19

P
age 11



1 

APPENDIX 3 

 

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP YEAR END REVENUE & CAPITAL FUNDS REVIEW 2018/19 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Projects 
Fund 

£42,000 
Base Budget 

2018/19 
 

b/f 2017/18 
£4,554 

The Projects Fund provides a budget to resource larger projects to address issues/demands to benefit the local 
community and environment across Heywood Township. 
 
This fund has been used to deliver and support 18 projects approved in 2018/19.  The variety of projects funded 
included Fit, Feed & Read at Darnhill Library that aimed to provide a meal to children during the summer holidays who 
may not eat when not at school and increase the number of 5-11 year olds accessing local library services; Heywood 
1940’s Day on Saturday 22 June 2019 to be organised by Heywood Business Group in partnership with Heywood 
Township that will provide historical, educational and nostalgic entertainment and activities for the community; 
Queen's Park Floral Manchester Bee design bedding scheme in Queen's Park created to commemorate the 
Manchester Arena bombing; Heywood and District Angling Society replenished their adult fish stock in the lodge to 
create a balanced ecosystem and provide local anglers with a variety of fish breeds to catch without any detriment to 
the local wildlife; Queen's Park Family Summer Sessions that incorporated a range of activities including arts and 
crafts, circus skills, outdoor games, multi sports and play that had a positive impact on children and their parents 
health and wellbeing; Crimble Croft Community Centre celebrated National Play Day with fun activities and 
entertainment for local children; lighting and sound equipment for HeyKids performance of ‘Popstars the 90’s Musical’;  
Heywood Charities Fete parade and event held in Queen's Park celebrating tradition and community heritage with a 
variety of activities and entertainment; support a young talented athlete who is a member of the Handball Great 
Britain/England Squads; provision of inserts for the Heywood Memorial Gardens and Civic Centre information boards; 
Cherwell Summer Fayre provided an opportunity for the local community to participate in activities in and around the 
Cherwell Wellbeing Hub that encourage friendships, togetherness and community cohesion; League for Life 
programme to provide young people with the opportunity to obtain Rugby League sports coaching after school; repair 
of the damaged wall at Longford Street Car Park and installation of a commemorative bench (World War One themed) 
within Heywood Memorial Gardens. 
 
This fund has a committed amount of £9,150 and unallocated funds of £1,105 to be carried forward to 2019/20. 
 

Township Officers recommend the Projects Fund retains a base budget of £42,000 in 2019/20 (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy). 

Events Fund £8,000 
Base Budget 

2018/19 
 

The Events Fund has been used to resource the Heywood Christmas Festival organised by Heywood Business Group 
that provided social and economic benefits for the town with the event attracting shoppers and visitors and the 
Remembrance Sunday parade and service. 

Township Officers recommend the Events Fund retains a base budget of £8,000 in 2019/20. 

P
age 12



2 

 

 

REVENUE FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

North Ward 
Fund 

£3,000 
Base Budget 

2018/19 
 

b/f 2017/18 
£4,874 

Each Heywood Township Ward received £3,000 (except Hopwood Hall Ward pro rata £2,000) to allocate to smaller 
projects that would enable activities to take place to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the local 
community and environment.  This fund has been useful in providing a budget for dealing with issues supported by 
Ward Councillors that necessitated a quick response. 
 
These funds were used to support a variety of projects during 2018/19: 
 
North Ward Fund financed the cutting back of the hedge/shrubs along the footpath access from Shannon Avenue on 
to Ribble Grove; installation of a bollard on Rochdale Road East to prevent vehicles driving along the footpath; 
contribution towards the replenishment of adult fish stock in the lodge used by Heywood and District Angling Society; 
provision of a pedestrian guard rail at the corner of Vale Street and Rochdale Lane to prevent HGVs from driving over 
the footpath and funds towards the surfacing of the four berms at Heywood BMX track. 
Committed funds of £2,102 and unallocated funds of £2,772 at year end to be carried forward into 2019/20. 
 
West Ward Fund financed a contribution towards the replenishment of adult fish stock in the lodge used by Heywood 
and District Angling Society and funds towards the surfacing of the four berms at Heywood BMX track. 
Committed funds of £700 and unallocated funds of £2,401 at year end to be carried forward into 2019/20. 
 
Hopwood Hall Ward Fund have committed funds towards environmental improvements within the ward, installation of 
a grit bin on Rydal Grove, a contribution towards the replenishment of adult fish stock in the lodge used by Heywood 
and District Angling Society; provision of a pedestrian guard rail to extend the existing barriers at the main entrance to 
the play area at Hopwood County Primary School to increase the edge of carriageway protection for children and 
funds towards the surfacing of the four berms at Heywood BMX track. 
Committed funds of £4,506 and unallocated funds of £2,977 at year end to be carried forward into 2019/20. 
 

West Ward 
Fund 

£3,000 
Base Budget 

2018/19 
 

b/f 2017/18 

£1,725 

Hopwood 
Hall Ward 
Fund 

£2,000 
Base Budget 

2018/19 
 

b/f 2017/18 
£6,430 

Township Officers recommend the Ward Funds retain a base budget of £8,000 pro-rata in 2019/20. 

P
age 13



3 

 

CAPITAL FUNDS 

Fund Budget Review 

Capital Fund £53,600 
Base Budget 

 
b/f 2017/18 

£44,490 
 

£18,760 
Budget 

Reduction 

The Capital Fund has been used to deliver projects that benefit the Township’s community and environment, and 
realise the Township priorities in 2018/19.  Projects were submitted from Councillors, Council Officers and the 
community.   Cabinet on 25 September 2018 approved a budget reduction of £18,760. 
 
The Capital Fund has been used to finance 6 projects in 2018/19.  The variety of projects funded included the  
extension of no waiting at any time waiting restrictions at Bury Old Road and Moss Hall Road junction to address 
safety concerns about the reduced width at the junction due to parked cars in close proximity of the traffic island;  
replacement of lanterns on lighting columns and wall mounted columns located at Heywood Civic Centre Concourse 
to improve the current lighting levels in the area; introduction of parking restrictions on the north side of Rochdale 
Road East between Green Lane and opposite the junction of Harefield Drive as parked vehicles are obstructing the 

view of drivers exiting the junction and parking on the footway; contribution towards the refurbishment of  Sandon 
House Community Centre's function room; surfacing of the four berms at Heywood BMX track and introduction of 
waiting restrictions on Rochdale Lane/Brierley Street as parked vehicles are obstructing businesses from accessing 
their premises. 
 
This fund has a committed amount of £20,000 and unallocated funds of £1,437 at year end to be carried forward to 
2019/20. 
 

Township Officers recommend that the Capital Fund retains a base budget of £53,600 in 2019/20. (subject to final outturn agreed with Accountancy) 

P
age 14



APPENDIX 4 
 

 

 

 

  

“We felt the project had successfully given 
people a high quality experience, raising their 
awareness of their local area and inspiring 
them to get involved in its long term care” 
Jude Murray 
Director 

NatureEd CIC 

 

Recipient: NatureEd CIC 

Project: Explore Your Environment 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £1,450 

 

NatureEd CIC is a not-for profit organisation committed to helping local communities enjoy 
and benefit from their local green spaces through exciting environmental opportunities.  
Working from their education base at Hollingworth Lake Visitor Centre, NatureEd offer high 
quality environmental education experiences at an affordable cost through a range of site-
based and outreach learning opportunities. 
 
Explore Your Environment provided eco-activity sessions for five local voluntary sector 
groups based in Heywood Township.  Participants were Heywood in Bloom, Friends of 
Hopwood Park, St Margaret’s Brownies, St Luke’s Brownies and St Luke’s Guides.  The 
sessions helped people to explore their local green spaces and to take an active role in 
caring for it.  Activities included bug hunting, making mini-beast homes, pond dipping, bird 
ID, making bird feeders and piloting the new EYEspy Heritage Trail.  Mini-beast  
homes and bird feeders created during the sessions have made physical  
improvements to the biodiversity of the local area. 

Page 15



  

 

NatureEd created a family-friendly Explore Your Environment map of Queen’s Park and a 
new heritage activity.  The EYEspy Heritage Trail uses the  
map together with photographs and facts about features in the  
park to help local people to discover more about their local  
green space.  The new resources have been shared with the  
Friends Group and St Luke’s Primary School adjacent to  
the park.  Packs with a hard copy of the map and a CD of  
the graphics will be a resource for use by the Friends Group  
and St Luke’s Primary School and members of the public  
can download their own copies free from NatureEd’s website. 
 
Young people who participated in the eco-activity 
sessions used the experience towards achieving their nature  
and wildlife badges.  NatureEd received 100% feedback rating from eco-activity group 
leaders about the activities with everyone expressing an interest in  
booking again.  The EYEspy resources for Queen’s Park will encourage families to explore 
their local park, increasing physical exercise and having fun while learning about local 
heritage, so enhancing their health and wellbeing.  NatureEd has included the activity in an 
educational programme for Heap Bridge Village Primary School.  The resources are also a 
legacy for community groups.  The Friends of Queen’s Park can use the new map for events 
in the park and also design their own bespoke orienteering challenges.  Explore Your 
Environment provided local people with the opportunity to get actively involved in 
understanding and caring for wildlife and raising environmental awareness. 

School children 
learning about 

mini-beasts and 
gardening with 

Heywood in 
Bloom 

“The children had a lot of fun and your enthusiasm kept the children 
engaged throughout!” 
Leader for Heywood in Bloom comments about a great mini beast hunt 

Page 16



 

 

 

 

  

Local families having fun finding out about the wildlife in Hopwood Park as part of the Friends 

Group annual hay meadow raking event 

“Participants have shared their experiences with others including family, friends and 
colleagues.  The comments from St Luke’s Guides who piloted the new EYEspy 
Heritage Trail were particularly helpful.  The Guides felt the map was easy to use and 
helped them to explore their local area.  However, they also suggested that it would 
be good to have some flexibility to adapt the activity for different age ranges which is 
a feature that has been built into the overall resource pack” 
Jude Murray 

Director, NatureEd CIC 

St Margaret’s 

Brownies learning bird 

ID skills …… then 

making some 

incredible bird feeders 

in preparation for 

taking part in the 

RSPB Big Garden 

Birdwatch 

St Luke’s Guides testing out their map skills and 

helping pilot the new Queen’s Park EYEspy Heritage 

Trail 

Page 17



 

  

“It brings together grandads and 
grandmas, parents, children and people 
with learning disabilities in a positive 
environment. This has been shown to 
reduce hate crime as people with 
disabilities are seen in a positive light and 
stigma reduces” 
Jane Holland 

Community Connector, PossAbilities 

 

Recipient: PossAbilities CIC 

Project: Cherwell Wellbeing Hub Summer Fayre 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £1,074 

 
PossAbilities is a Community Interest Community that supports people with learning 
disabilities, dementia and young people leaving care to live the life they choose.  Service 
provision to improve the well being of the local community includes family based support; 
Homeshare involving an individual providing a spare room, and another offers up to 10 hours 
of social support in return; respite, short breaks and supported holidays; supported living and 
outreach packages that are tailored to individual needs to develop the skills necessary to 
improve and maintain independence; day services at one of their four Wellbeing Hubs or out 
in the local community that create stimulating and engaging activities for people with a range 
of different needs and abilities; dementia care and employment opportunities through 
Workchoice and Specialist Employability Support programmes. 
 
Cherwell Wellbeing Hub provides opportunity, support and encouragement for adults with 
learning and physical disabilities to learn new skills and to improve their existing ones, paving 
the way into employment or voluntary opportunities and a more active role in the local 
community.  It also encourages confidence building, team work, friendships and health and 
wellbeing.  The Cherwell Garden and Farm is one acre site with a performance space, mud 
kitchen, dipping pond, sensory garden, growing zone, outdoor eating area, wildlife corridors, 
a bee hotel and hedgehog houses. 

Page 18



    

 
The Cherwell Wellbeing Hub’s annual Summer Fayre attracted some 800 local people who 
enjoyed activities and the final of the Inclusive World Cup when the winners were presented 
with their trophy and medals.  England’s blind footballer Azeem Amir performed the opening 
ceremony. 
 
The Summer Fayre was an opportunity to bring people together in a joyous endeavour that 
reinforces the view that Heywood is a great place to be, encouraging friendships, 
togetherness and a feeling of greater community cohesion. 

Page 19



  

“Through past experience and reputation 
people know what a good scheme this is – 
local children were encouraged to join and 
parents wanted their child to be active 
throughout the summer holidays” 
Michelle Krauza, Library Officer - Digital & 
Young People and  
Penny Butterworth (Libraries & Customer 

Services Team Leader) 

 

Recipient: Rochdale Council Library Services 

Project: Fit, Feed and Read at Darnhill Library 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,138 

 
Darnhill Library’s Fit, Feed and Read was an initiative delivered in partnership with Link4Life 
throughout the school summer holidays (30 July to 7 September 2018) aimed principally at 
children aged 5-11 in receipt of free school meals who might not otherwise have a meal at 
lunchtime in the school holidays.  The children had an opportunity to read and discuss the 
books they are reading, participate in arts and crafts and get active with outdoor sports 
sessions.  Link4Life promoted the initiative to all local primary schools by attending 
assemblies with information leaflets and registration forms.  Libraries promoted the scheme 
through the local press and on social media.  Local early help services also referred families 
to the initiative; supporting families key workers, social workers, integrated neighbourhood 
teams and community safety teams. 
 

Mischief Makers was the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge for 2018 that aimed to 
get children into libraries to keep up their reading skills and confidence during the long 
holidays.  The Challenge has a different theme each year and children can read any book 
as long as they are borrowed from the library.  Children receive special rewards each time 
they read a book and every child that completes the challenge is awarded a certificate and 

Page 20



  

 
a medal.  The Summer Reading Challenge is open to all primary school aged children and 
is designed for all reading abilities. All local primary schools are contacted and given 
resources to work with their local library to actively promote the National Reading Initiative.  
Every child is given information regarding the theme of the Summer Reading Challenge and 
encouraged to take part. 
 
Celebrating the 80th anniversary of the much loved comic, Beano, Mischief Makers Summer 
Reading Challenge provided each child who signed up with their own map of Beanotown to 
help Dennis, Gnasher and friends to find mysterious buried treasure.  By reading and visiting 
the library, children received stickers to discover where the treasure is hiding plus a medal 
and a certificate when they read any six books over the summer holidays.  Mischief Makers 
had a dedicated website for children taking part in the Challenge that allowed them to keep 
track of the books they read, write book reviews, enter competitions and chat to other 
readers. 
 
Children got up to all sorts of mischief enjoying craft activities and workshops from creating 
Dennis the Menace hair and mask, a Dennis in a box, a Bananaman shooter, Beano skittles, 
designing a cartoon character competition, designing a Fit, Feed and Read logo and a comic 
storyboard workshop.  Entertainment included Storytelling with Can ‘O’ Worms, Skylight 
Circus, John Piper’s Puppets, Craig Bradley the Poet, The Zoo Lab and Cartoon Storyboard 
Creations with Cat Jessop. 
 

Multi-sport coaches delivered the sport sessions utilising space in and around the library and 
Rochdale Supply Agency (RoSA) with Libraries’ staff and young volunteers facilitated the 
Read and Feed sessions.  The Fit, Feed and Read initiative provided the opportunity for young 
people to volunteer and develop new skills that will help them with their college and job 
applications. 

Page 21



  

 

Libraries partnership with Link4Life enabled resources to be optimised and offer a wider 
provision to those children who needed it.  A free meal for those children who might 
encounter difficulty receiving lunch when not in school was facilitated through a link 
established with FareShare (a charity that helps organisations working with people who could 
go hungry by distributing surplus food from the food industry).  A local caterer prepared and 
delivered a variety of sandwiches alongside the food from Fareshare to guarantee each child 
received a lunch and not be solely reliant on the fluctuating quantity of surplus food.  Tesco 
also provided a one-off supply of fresh fruit which was distributed between participating 
libraries and sports locations.  Over 332 meals were offered to the young people who 
attended the Fit, Feed and Read sessions across the borough. 
 
Fit, Feed and Read has attracted young people into the library to experience reading for 
pleasure, inspire their creativity, develop relationships with others and get active.  The 
provision of a free lunch has ensured some consistency for those children who are in receipt 
of free school meals. 

The scheme in 2018 was a success.  Key benefits: 

 Enhanced and supported mission for all children to read widely and for pleasure 

 Encouraged parental engagement and family involvement in reading 

 Helped schools make links with their local library and the wider community 

 Was intrinsically inclusive and contributed to the achievement of ALL pupils, 
including SEN disadvantaged pupils and the most able 

 Prevention of the tendency for children’s reading to dip over the holidays 

 Ensured consistency of the provision of a free lunch for those children in receipt of 
free school meals 

 
Michelle Krauza (Library Officer - Digital & Young People & Libraries) and 

Penny Butterworth (Libraries & Customer Services Team Leader) 

Page 22



 

 

  

“The project has insulated the room 
completely helping reduce our carbon 
footprint and reducing energy charges. 
The room is much more in tune with the 
rest of the building and appreciated by our 
users” 
Steve McLoughlin 
Secretary 

Sandon House Community Centre 

 

Recipient: Sandon House Community Centre 

Project: Sandon House Community Centre Function Room Upgrade 

Fund: Capital Fund 

Awarded: £3,250 

 

Sandon House Community Centre provides support and services to older people and people 
in need with the aim of reducing isolation, increasing employability skills; improving health 
and wellbeing and addressing financial hardship.  Working in partnership with Rochdale 
Boroughwide Housing, local GP surgeries, Link4Life, NHS and local community groups, the 
centre responses to the needs of the local community.  A variety of services provided include 
a luncheon club on Monday, Wednesday and Thursday to offer home cooked meals for 
reasonable prices together with entertainment and activities to the local elderly, a drop in 
centre for veterans, advice and support for the homeless and families in crisis, and 
placement of volunteers to help them gain skills and keep them in the employability market. 
 
The centre is a prefabricated structure that has experienced increased demand from service 
users.  The function room was in need of renovation/insulation to create a welcoming and 
cost efficient environment.  Building works involved the insulation of all external walls, 
plastering walls/ceiling, fitting new skirting and architrave and PVC window cills, latex screed 
floor, fit vinyl plank floor and wire sockets and lighting. 

Page 23



 

 

  

”The sessions provided opportunities for 
families to meet one another and develop 
friendships whilst participating in fun and 
enjoyable activities thus helping to reduce 
isolation and inactivity” 
Dawn Fox 

Director, Fullcircle nw CIC 

 

Recipient: Fullcircle nw CIC 

Project: Queen’s Park Family Summer Sessions 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £1,265 

 
Fullcircle nw CIC (Community Interest Community) was established to address concerns 
surrounding the significant impact that the current economic climate is having on local 
communities.  At a time of significant reductions in government and local council expenditure, 
many local providers are unable to continue to provide children, young people and 
communities with the services and support they need.  Fullcircle works with young people, 
residents and community groups within the North West specialising in three areas of work; 
community development, children and young people and alternate education.  Services 
provided by Fullcircle in local neighbourhoods aim to inspire and empower people to be 
actively involved in issues that affect their community, provide innovative and responsive 
effective services which reflect the needs of the community and offer young people with the 
best opportunities to achieve their full potential. 
 
A coordinated programme of free family friendly activities in Queen’s Park, Heywood was 
delivered by Fullcircle during the summer holidays.  Families participated in a range of fun, 
positive and diversionary sessions.  The programme consisted of five activity sessions with 
each session for two hours, free of charge and open access for people of all ages to enjoy.   

Page 24



“The arts and crafts activities provided allowed the children and young people to 
be creative and develop their arts and craft based skills whilst having fun.  They 
felt a sense of pride and accomplishment after they produced their work.  The craft 
activities included creating pencil toppers, summer spirals, bracelets, colourful 
fans, painting and more.  The adults (parents/carers) gained ideas and increased 
their own knowledge of the benefits of playing outdoors and the positive impact 
this has on children and their families particularly in relation to health and 
wellbeing” 
Dawn Fox 

Director, Fullcircle nw CIC 

  

 
Sessions incorporated a range of activities including arts and crafts, circus skills, outdoor 
games, multi sports and play.  Parents and children were able to participate in a range of 
physical activities and games with a positive impact on their health and wellbeing.  Activities 
encouraged families and individuals to make use of other facilities within the park which had 
a positive impact on the number of people using the park independently. 

Page 25



 

  

“Joshua has continued to thrive with Great 
Britain.  The funding makes a huge 
difference as the costs are high.  Most 
training takes place in Europe as they need 
to be playing against that level of 
competition” 
Lyndsay Beers 

Mother of Joshua McDaid 

 

Recipient: Lyndsay Beers 

Project: Talented Athlete Scheme – Joshua McDaid (Handball) 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £1,999 

 
Joshua McDaid is a member of the North East Manchester Hawks Handball Club who 
compete in the men’s league (Premiership) and the team finished 4th in the league and cup 
runners up.  Handball is a team sport with seven players (six outfield players and a 
goalkeeper) who pass a ball using their hands with the aim of throwing it into the goal of the 
other team.  A standard match consists of two periods of 30 minutes and the team that 
scores more goals wins.  Joshua was selected to train and represent the Great Britain 
National Team at under 18’s level in 2018 and he was offered the opportunity to train with 
the under 20’s handball squad that will provide him with valuable experience. 
 
Travel to the matches, training and equipment are funded by Joshua’s mother as the squad 
receives limited financial support under a joint International Handball Federation/IOC 
programme.  The grant awarded contributed to match shoes, training kits, travelling 
expenses to training sessions and competitions plus match fees. 
 
In August 2018 Joshua travelled with the Great Britain under 18’s handball squad to 
compete in the European Championships in Tullin, Austria.  The squad played against 
Montenegro, Turkey, Czech Republic, Kosova and Ireland before winning the play-off game 
for a placement.  The outcome of the Championships means the squad were invited to 
compete in Kosova at the end of October 2018 in the National Handball Competition that 
forms part of Joshua’s six year plan towards competing in the 2024 Olympics in Paris. 

Page 26



  

 

At the IHF Tournament in Pristina, Kosova, the Great Britain squad beat Moldova to set up a 
gold medal encounter against the hosts for a place for the winners in the IHF Trophy 
Intercontinental Championship to be held later in 2018.  Josh McDaid, Charlie Fletcher and 
Sebastian Hesk were named as most valuable players.  The squad achieved a silver medal 
after they were narrowly defeated by Kosova in the youth final and the British Ambassador to 
Kosova, Ruairi O’Connell, presented the medals to Great Britain who can be proud of their 
achievement. 
 
Joshua’s training regime and ensuring he gets the right nutrition aids his performance in the 
sport and his ultimate aim to be part of the Olympic GB squad and represent his country at 
the Olympic Games. 

Page 27



  

“Visitors and exhibitors travelled from as far 
away as Kent, all praised our town for its 
friendly atmosphere and the effort and 
funding put in by the Council and local 
businesses” 
Melanie Caffrey 

Secretary, Heywood Business Group 

 

Recipient: Heywood Business Group 

Project: Heywood 1940’s Day 2018 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £10,000 

 
Heywood 1940’s Day on Saturday 23 June 2018 was organised by Heywood Business 
Group in partnership with Heywood Township.  Entertainment and fun activities from the 
1940’s era provide a historical, educational and nostalgic interest to both young and old.  
This community event promotes the town nationally as a destination for leisure, recreation 
and shopping. 
 
This event is as popular as ever for all the family with numerous free activities and it has 
become the highlight of Heywood’s social calendar.  Locals and visitors to the town enjoyed 
a fly past by a Spitfire, the many military and classic vehicles on show, crowds were 
serenaded with wartime tunes and period dance performances, photo opportunities with 
authentic fighter planes, re-enactors in period uniforms and dress, traditional street 
musicians, vintage carousel, street theatre and stalls offering 1940’s style crafts, cakes and 
sweets.  Local businesses joined in the fun with 1940’s themed window displays, staff 
dressing in vintage clothing, bunting, memorabilia exhibits and providing refreshments.  
Local people and visitors were encouraged to dress in forties outfits to maintain the 
momentum of the themed event. 

Page 28



  

 

Record crowds were in attendance throughout the day with the date of the event chosen to 
coincide with Armed Forces Week to show the town’s support for the men and women who 
make up the Armed Forces community from currently serving troops to Service families, 
veterans and cadets.  The Scots Guards Association Pipes and Drums Band led the Armed 
Forces Parade with a large number of veterans and cadets through the town centre with 
massive applause from the community lining the streets before the flag to recognise Armed 
Forces Day was raised by Heywood Veterans Association in Heywood Memorial Gardens. 

Page 29



  

Page 30



  

“…a pleasure to bring together a team of 
over 60’s who had given up on sport and 
exercise and watch them become such 
good friends and improve their health 
and fitness levels through football has 
been great to see” 
Paul Wright 

Chairman, Roach Dynamos JFC 

 

Recipient: Roach Dynamos JFC 

Project: Club Development 

Fund: Projects Fund 

Awarded: £2,500 

 
Roach Dynamos JFC established in 1975 provides high quality and affordable junior football 
for young people living across Heywood from age 4 to open age (16+).  With a total of 27 
teams and in excess of 340 members, the club provides high quality, disciplined football for 
all those with a passion for the game and promotes the values of sportsmanship.  Each team 
is registered with a league and during the football season the club provides weekly training 
sessions and access to weekly football games against opponents in relevant leagues.  Also 
additional opportunities to participate in football tournaments.  At the end of the season the 
club hosts presentation events where participation and achievement is recognised and 
celebrated.  All players are presented with a trophy with their name and age group on to 
mark their contribution to their team and individuals are selected for personal acclaim in 
recognition of their footballing ability, their consistent contribution to the team and Players 
Player of the Season. 
 
To make fitness through football accessible to even more members of the local community 
who are interested in football and challenge traditional stereotypes around football being 
solely a male game, Roach Dynamos launched a girls football team and a walking football 
team for the over 60’s.  The popularity in both these areas has resulted in the club being in a 
position where they could realistically attract players, form full teams and enter them to play 
within local leagues.  Kits, equipment and associated costs such as pitch hire enabled these 
non-traditional teams to be registered with the league and attend weekly training sessions 
and play a match every week for a local league. 
 
Roach Dynamos are committed to providing positive free time activities to people living 
across Heywood and promote healthy lifestyles by encouraging regular exercise and a good 
diet.  The club endeavours to provide a warm welcome to all participants and their families 
and endorses the benefits of social interaction and camaraderie formed via team sports. 

Page 31



 

 

  
“…crowds turned out in huge numbers and 
the town was very busy throughout the entire 
day…this year the addition of the Sky Rider 
and Pendulum Ride were very popular as 
was the massive fireworks display at a grand 
finale which wowed the crowds” 
Melanie Caffrey 

Secretary, Heywood Business Group 

 

Recipient: Heywood Business Group 

Project: Heywood Christmas Festival 2018 

Fund: Events Fund 

Awarded: £6,000 

 
Heywood Business Group is a well-established, independent, business group run voluntarily 
by local business people.  The group promotes Heywood and the town centre businesses in 
a positive light, and organises activities in the town to create a feel good environment in 
Heywood with the aim of generating prosperity for the town and wider community. 
 
Heywood Christmas Festival was organised by Heywood Business Group on behalf of 
Heywood Township to promote the town as a destination for leisure, recreation and 
shopping.  The festival on Saturday 17 November 2018 provided many family attractions, 
entertainment and themed food and drink that brought the people of Heywood and the wider 
community together.  Activities, stalls and entertainment included a local talent contest 
outside St Luke’s Church, arts and crafts sessions for children, magic show, performances 
from Blackley Brass Band and Littleborough Brass Band, market stalls to support local 
charities or purchase a festive treat, vintage carousel, miniature train rides, stilt walkers, 
photo opportunities with costumed characters of Cinderella, Rapunzel, Darth Vader, Wonder 
Woman, Ironman and Batman plus Elfie the Elf on a special mission to add well behaved 
children to Santa’s nice list and take present requests.  A nativity scene took the lead in the 
lantern parade with illuminated floats with festive characters of Frozen’s Arendelle with Elsa 
and Olaf, Jack Skellington from the Nightmare Before Christmas and The Ginch, voluntary 

Page 32



  

 

groups and Santa on the newly refurbished Rotary Santa Sleigh.  New attractions this year 
that proved very popular were Sky Rider and Pendulum Ride.  Heywood’s Christmas lights 
were switched on as St Luke’s Church chimed and The Olde Queen Anne hosted a fantastic 
firework display in the grand finale. 
 
The festival is an inclusive and cohesive event that helps build links between the different 
communities in Heywood.  It provides social and economic benefits for the town with the 
event attracting shoppers and visitors to enjoy the festive celebration. 

Page 33



  

Page 34



  

“…seeing each step of the renovation project 
gradually transforming a disused, abandoned 
building into a hub of the community where a 
wide variety of people of all ages choose to 
visit on a regular basis, the success has been 
the greatest highlight. …the dedication and 
hard work involved has now paid off” 
Sandra Trickett 
Chair 

Friends of Hopwood Park 

 

Recipient: Friends of Hopwood Park 

Project: Hopwood Park Café/Community Hub 

Fund: Capital Fund 

Awarded: £10,000 

 
Friends of Hopwood Park was established in 2010 to improve the facilities and condition of 
Hopwood Park and create a safe, stimulating, local green space for the enjoyment and 
recreation of all ages within the local community but with emphasis on children’s recreation.  
This thriving community organisation has been successful in securing investment into 
Hopwood Park for a modern play area for older children with a nearby picnic area and 
younger kids play area, multi-use games areas and bowling green, a path around the park 
and drainage scheme that feeds into a wildlife pond. 
 
Rochdale Borough Council agreed a 25 year lease with the Friends of Hopwood Park for the 
derelict bus shelter/toilet block on Manchester Road, Hopwood for renovation into a 
café/community hub.  The improvements made to Hopwood Park have led to increased 
visitors to the park and access to an indoor facility to provide refreshments and toilet facilities 
enhances the user experience, generates ongoing revenue for investment into Hopwood 
Park in the long term and nurtures a sense of community and focal point for local residents.  
The building has been transformed from a dilapidated and unwelcome eyesore at the 
entrance to the park into The Tree House Café with a welcoming vista on a gateway road 
from the motorway into Heywood town centre. 

THEN 
Original bus shelter built 1953 

NOW 
The Tree House Cafe 

Page 35



 

Page 36



APPENDIX 5

HEYWOOD TOWNSHIP FUNDING STREAMS 2019/20

REVENUE FUNDS 2019/20 = £84,748

REVENUE FUNDS

Fund b/f 2018/19 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2019/20
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2019/20

Notes

Projects Fund £10,255 £42,000 £0 £52,255 £9,150 £43,105 Fund to resource larger revenue projects that meet the Township 

priorities.  Base budget of £42,000 with retained budget (see 

committed column) for projects approved pre 2019/20.

Events Fund £480 £8,000 £0 £8,480 £0 £8,480 Fund for Heywood Township to allocate to events during 2019/20 

for the benefit of the local community.  Base budget of £8,000.

North Ward Fund £5,789 £3,000 £0 £8,789 £3,452 £5,337 Fund for North Heywood Ward to allocate to small revenue 

projects to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the 

local community/environment.  Base budget of £3,000 with 

retained budget (see committed column) for projects approved 

pre 2019/20.

West Ward Fund £2,741 £3,000 £0 £5,741 £700 £5,041 Fund for West Heywood Ward to allocate to small revenue 

projects to respond to local issues/demands for the benefit of the 

local community/environment.  Base budget of £3,000 with 

retained budget (see committed column) for projects approved 

pre 2019/20.

Hopwood Hall Ward Fund £7,483 £2,000 £0 £9,483 £4,506 £4,977 Fund for Hopwood Hall Heywood Ward to allocate to small 

revenue projects to respond to local issues/demands for the 

benefit of the local community/environment.  Base budget of 

£2,000 with retained budget (see committed column) for projects 

approved pre 2019/20.

TOTAL £26,748 £58,000 £0 £84,748

Page 1 of 2

P
age 37



CAPITAL FUNDS 2019/20 = £75,037

CAPITAL FUNDS

Fund b/f 2018/19 Base Budget
Income/

Adjustments

Total Budget 

2019/20
Committed

Budget 

Available 

2019/20

Notes

Capital Fund £21,437 £53,600 £0 £75,037 £20,000 £55,037 Fund to resource capital projects that meet the Township 

priorities.  Base budget of £53,600 with retained budget (see 

committed column) for projects approved pre 2019/20.

TOTAL £21,437 £53,600 £0 £75,037

Page 2 of 2

P
age 38



 

Form HT02 

1 

 

 

 

HHEEYYWWOOOODD  TTOOWWNNSSHHIIPP  FFUUNNDD  TTEERRMMSS  AANNDD  CCOONNDDIITTIIOONNSS  22001199--2200 
 

 

1. Purpose of the fund 

 

Heywood Township’s vision is for Heywood to offer an attractive location, which is part of a successful 
borough and city region, where people feel proud of the town and enjoy living there.  We want Heywood to 
have a strong sense of identity and community offering a wide range of housing in attractive neighbourhoods 
at excellent value, modern employment opportunities and a thriving town centre with a good range of shops 
and leisure facilities. 
 

Heywood Township funds can be used to offer support to organisations and projects that are of direct benefit 
to the community and environment of Heywood.  Any local constituted community organisation can request 
funding support from Heywood Township for project support.  Special consideration will be given to groups 
without their own funds/with limited alternative means and those in areas not benefiting from other funding 
opportunities. 
 

All projects must show how they will address the Heywood Township priorities of: 
 

 People – We will safeguard and protect our vulnerable people and support people of all ages to be 

healthier, confident, and resilient, in control and successfully managing their lives.  We will enable 

communities to thrive and develop. 

 Place – We will create safe, resilient, flourishing and high quality places where people choose to live, work 

and invest. 

 Prosperity – We will encourage business growth and enterprise; increase our skills levels and create 

the conditions for the creation of good quality jobs. 
 

2. What can be funded 

 

a) Projects aiming to meet Township priorities. 

b) Projects for which there is no other identifiable budget and are within the powers of the Council. 

c) Projects that supplement or enhance current Council service provision. 

d) Improvements to landscapes or public areas, eg providing additional seating, paving, railings, etc. 

e) Restoration of buildings or landscaping as part of a heritage scheme. 

f) Projects that can clearly demonstrate benefit to the local community such as providing bollards, fencing, 

lights, CCTV, etc. 

g) Projects that can be delivered with no additional revenue costs. 

h) Equipment hire or purchase such as IT equipment, sports equipment, arts and crafts materials, etc. 

i) Publicity materials that recognise the contribution made by the Township. 

j) Specialist trainers/assessors to deliver qualifications/courses/activities. 

k) Hiring of venues to enable the project to be delivered (not general running costs). 

l) Talented young athletes competing at national/international level supported by a recognised sporting 

body. 
 

3. What cannot be funded 

 

a) Projects that would normally be funded through mainstream budgets, that duplicates or replaces existing 

services or that the Council or other body has a statutory obligation to provide. 

b) Projects benefiting individuals. 

c) Improvements to private land or buildings resulting in equity gain, unless there is a demonstrable wider 

community benefit. 

d) Promoting religious or political causes. 

APPENDIX 6 

Page 39



 

Form HT02 

2 

e) Campaigning or carrying out activities to influence a Council decision in the exercise of its statutory 

functions. 

f) Support for the general work of charities including fundraising events. 

g) Wages or expenses for permanent, contract or regular members of staff. 

h) General running costs eg utility bills, maintenance and repair of assets, etc. 

i) Parties/day trips out. 

j) Purchase of alcohol. 

k) Activities already started or purchasing items before funding is awarded. 

l) Purchasing of vehicles. 

m) Purchasing insurance. 
 

4. Terms and conditions 

 

a) The expenditure must be within the powers of the Council. 

b) The project must benefit the Township community or environment and meet at least one of the Heywood 

Township priorities. 

c) Grants can only be made to non-profit making formally constituted groups with their own group bank 

account. 

d) All grants must be spent/claimed within six months of approval.  Any extension to this period must be 

made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Heywood Township Delegated Sub 

Committee’s discretion. 

e) Applicants are limited to one Heywood Township grant in any two consecutive financial years.  

Community wide annual events in Heywood may be considered for funding at the discretion of Heywood 

Township Delegated Sub Committee. 

f) Grants are restricted to one application per one event/project. Applications from different user groups of 

the same project or centre for the same event at the same time are not eligible. 

g) The grant must be used for the purposes for which it was approved.  Any requests for change of use 

must be made in writing and is subject to the Chair and Vice Chair of Heywood Township Delegated Sub 

Committee’s discretion. 

h) VAT on purchases relating to the project must only be included in the amount requested if it cannot be 

claimed back from HM Revenue and Customs. 

i) Applicants are responsible for ensuring that all necessary permissions (such as planning permission), 

regulations (such as health and safety) and insurance relating to their scheme/event are in place. 

j) Applicants are responsible for applying to Rochdale Council if they intend to hold a public event on 

Council owned land. 

k) Groups applying for a project to work with children, young people or vulnerable adults must have policies 

and procedures in place that explain how these people will be protected and remain safe. 

l) If public liability insurance is required for a community project, it is the responsibility of the group to 

ensure adequate insurance is in place. 

m) The Council does not accept any liability for damage, loss or future maintenance of any projects funded 

by Township Funds. 

n) The Council reserves the right to withhold or reclaim the grant monies if the terms and conditions are not 

adhered to. 

o) The Council’s approval must be sought for the disposal or transfer of any items acquired with the grant. 

p) Successful applicants must complete and return a Project Evaluation Form and provide copy 

invoices/receipts that reflect the amount awarded and purpose for which the grant was approved as 

detailed in the application form.  This information must be provided to Heywood Township Office within 

one month of the conclusion of the project.  Failure to return these documents will result in restrictions 

Page 40



 

Form HT02 

3 

being imposed on the applicant relating to future requests for funding or reclaiming of the grant monies. 

q) The Council reserves the right to add/change specific conditions relating to payment of the grant, the 
purpose of the grant and/or the activities to be funded. 

 
 

5. Decision Making Process 
 

a. All projects must be submitted on an application form with supporting documentation. 

b) Application forms are checked by Township Officers to see if the project meets the terms and conditions 

of the fund. 

c) Projects not meeting the terms and conditions or incomplete application forms will be referred back to 

the applicant within 10 working days with a written explanation.  At this point applicants may be 

requested to supply additional information. 

d) Township Officers will refer projects for funding over £5,000 to the next Heywood Township Delegated 

Sub Committee for decision. 

e) Township Officers can use the officer scheme of delegation process for projects for funding of £5,000 or 

less. 

f) Decisions on Ward Funds are delegated to the Townships & Communities Manager in consultation with 

the Ward Councillors with the decision based on majority agreement.  Any disputes concerning 

allocation of Ward Funds will be referred to the next Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee for 

decision. 

g) Applicants will be advised of decisions in writing within 15 working days of the Heywood Township 

Delegated Sub Committee meeting. 

h) Township Officers will consult with the Chair and Ward Councillors about the future of a project when a 

Councillor has committed funds to a project and subsequently decided not to stand for election or has 

not be re-elected. 

i) There is no appeals process, but applicants may submit a fresh application. 
 

6. Commissioning Process 
 

a) All parties to do everything within their power to ensure the completion of the project to the specification 

and achieve the desired outcome within the specified timescale and costs. 

b) Proposed schemes/projects need to be developed in consultation with the relevant service to ensure 

alternative funding is not available and that they have resources available to cover any future 

maintenance/monitoring requirements. 

c) Any variations in costs or outcomes by either party should be negotiated and agreed between the 

provider and the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee prior to incurring any additional costs. 

d) Where the Township wish to vary the specification – the service provider will identify the implications of 

the change, ie time extensions, impact on outcomes, etc and additional costs, and agree the variations 

with the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee. 

e) Where the service provider may wish to vary the specification – the service provider should submit the 

variations to the Township Office with justification prior to incurring additional costs for consideration by 

the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee.  The Committee may decide not to accept the 

variations in which case the project continues to the original specification or if the Committee accepts 

the variations, to agree the funding of any additional costs from the Township Funds. 

f) The service provider will receive sufficient budget transferred from the Township Fund to cover the cost 

of the project on the Township Office receiving evidence of the start of the project as agreed.  Stage 

payments may be agreed. 

g) The service provider agrees to provide regular monitoring reports on the project in terms of achieving 

the outcomes, performance against targets and finance, and post project evaluation reports. 

Page 41



 

Form HT02 

4 

 

h) Where a service provider does not satisfy the performance targets for the project, the Heywood 

Township Delegated Sub Committee may, after consultation with the service provider, withhold funds (or 

withdraw funds previously transferred to a Council Service). 

i) Any unapproved additional costs incurred by the service provider must be borne by the service provider 

unless agreed otherwise with the Heywood Township Delegated Sub Committee. 

j) Service providers external to the Council will be required to submit invoices. 

Page 42



Report to Heywood Township Committee

Date of Meeting 30th May 2018
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Resources
Report Author John Addison
Public/Private Document Public

Heywood Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 
2019/20

Executive Summary

1. At the start of each municipal year, the Township Committee is required to 
confirm its delegated decision making arrangements for the year and to make 
appointments to Township Sub-Committees, (including the Chair and Vice 
Chair) and other bodies as detailed in Appendix 2 to the report.

Recommendation

2.

2.1

2.2

That the Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee be retained on the 
terms of reference as set out in Appendix 1 of the report;

That the Chair and Vice Chair of the Heywood Township Delegated Sub-
Committee and the membership be appointed;

That appointments be made to the other bodies as detailed in Appendix 2 to 
the report;

Reason for Recommendation

3. The Council has established and appoints Township Committees that may 
exercise both executive and non-executive powers as set out in the 
Responsibility for Council Functions in Part 3 of the Constitution. 

The Sub-Committee exercises either delegated powers or acts on any matter 
detailed in the Committee’s Terms of Reference on which it is essential to take 
a decision. 

The proper appointment of Sub-Committees is required to permit the 
undertaking of delegated functions in accordance with statutory and 
procedural requirements, and appointments to Working Groups and Other 
Bodies are required to enable the Township Committee to undertake and to 
respond to the full range of issues relevant to the Township.

Page 43

Agenda Item 9



The Committee has delegated powers to make appointments to a number of 
other bodies as detailed in Appendix 2.

Key Points for Consideration

4.

4.1

The Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee currently exercises 
formal powers as detailed at Appendix 1, as a Sub-Committee for dealing with 
’urgent’ issues on behalf of the Township Committee and for making grant 
approvals and decisions on devolved budgets and Township Funds.

Alternatives Considered

The Committee could choose not to appoint to sub-committees and undertake 
all delegated functions themselves, but this may have a detrimental impact on 
the ability to progress Township priorities or deal with urgent items of 
business. 

The Committee could choose to adopt alternative Sub-Committee 
arrangements.

Costs and Budget Summary

5. There are no direct financial implications to this report.

Risk and Policy Implications

The Committee is being asked to confirm its delegation arrangements to 
ensure that decisions are made in accordance with relevant and statutory 
procedural requirements.  Not to appoint to the Sub-Committee and the 
working groups might limit member involvement in key initiatives for the 
Township.

6.

Consultation

7. Not required.

Background Papers Place of Inspection

8. There are no background papers 
to this report.

For Further Information Contact: John Addison,
Tel: 01706 924716
john.addison@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 44



Appendix 1

Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee – Terms of Reference 2019/2020

1. To deal with any urgent matters, on behalf of the Township Committee as 
detailed within Part 3, Paragraphs 8.1 and 8.2 of the Councils Constitution;

2. To monitor budgets delegated to the Township level (including Township 
Funds), to ensure that all requirements and restrictions placed on any devolved 
funding are met or are capable of being met before any decisions are made;

3. To consider and determine all applications/ proposals to the Township Funds, 
ensuring that all requirements and restrictions placed on any devolved funding 
are met, or capable of being met, before any decisions are made.

Page 45



Appendix 2

Heywood Township Appointments 2019/2020

a) Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee

In 2018/2019 All Township Committee Members were appointed to the 
Heywood Township Delegated Sub-Committee with Councillors Rush and 
Dutton being appointed as Chair and Vice Chair respectively.

 b) East Lancashire Railway Trust

The Township Committee is requested to appoint two individuals to serve on 
the Trust. In 2018/19, Councillor Dutton and Mr B Davies were appointed to the 
Trust.

c) Heywood Magic Board

The Township Committee is requested to appoint Members to serve on the 
Board. In 2018/19 Councillors Dutton, Susan Emmott, Malcom and Rush were 
appointed to the Board.

d) Township Older Persons Champion

The Township Committee appoint one Member to serve in the above role.  In 
2018/19 Councillor Robinson was appointed as the Township Older Persons 
Champion.

e) Township Highways Champion

The Township Committee appoint one Member to serve in the above role. In 
2018/19 Councillor Rush was appointed as the Township Highways Champion.

f) Heywood Township Planning Panels 

The Township Committee appoint Members to serve on the Planning Panel.  
Members should preferably not be on the Planning & Licensing Committee.  

Page 46


	Agenda
	7 Minutes
	Minutes

	8 Heywood Township Funds Review
	Appendix 1 - Heywood Township Funds Review
	Appendix 2 - Heywood Township Funds Review
	Appendix 3 - Heywood Township Funds Review
	Appendix 4 - Heywood Township Funds Review
	Appendix 5 - Heywood Township Funds Review
	Appendix 6 - Heywood Township Funds Review

	9 Heywood Township Delegation Arrangements and Appointments 2019/20

